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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY 

We pay respect to and acknowledge the traditional owners of lutruwita (Tasmania), the 

palawa/pakana people.  

We acknowledge the North-West Nation, including eight clans, Tommeginer, Parperloihener, 

Pennemukeer, Pendowte, Peerapper, Manegin, Tarkinener and the Peternidic; the South-West 

Nation, including four clans, Mimegin, Lowreenne, Ninene and Needwonnee; and two clans 

of the North Nation, Noeteeler and Plairhekehillerplue, as the traditional owners of the lands 

within the Cradle Coast region. 

We recognise and celebrate the Tasmanian Aboriginal peoples’ survival and continued 

connection with the land, spanning more than 40,000 years. This is a very important part of our 

region’s story.  

Cradle Coast Authority Annual Report 2020 published by Cradle Coast Authority. 

No part of the publication may be reproduced without the express prior permission of the publisher. A digital version 

of this report can be found on the publications and media releases page of our website. 

 

Image from left to right: CCA CEO Daryl Connelly, CCA Deputy Chief Representative Mayor Peter Freshney, CCA Chair the Hon. Sid 

Sidebottom, Mr Richard Warner AM, Her Excellency Professor the Hon. Kate Warner AC, CCA Director Strategic Services Claire Smith, CCA 

Chief Representative Mayor Jan Bonde, CCA Regional NRM Manager Spencer Gibbs 

https://www.cradlecoast.com/cca/publications-media-releases/
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CRADLE COAST AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 

The Annual Report provides a comprehensive overview of Cradle Coast Authority’s (CCA’s) 

activities during 2019/20 incorporating the results of our performance in respect of goals and 

objectives set in the 2019/20 Annual Plan and details of our financial performance. The report 

also provides an insight into the full extent of our operations and services and how we are 

working towards securing a positive future for our region. 

The Cradle Coast is a vibrant and diverse region of Tasmania, with beautiful coastlines, rich 

agriculture lands and awe-inspiring national park areas. Almost 112,765 people call this region 

home. The region incorporates the nine municipalities of Burnie City, Central Coast, Circular 

Head, Devonport City, Kentish, King Island, Latrobe, Waratah-Wynyard, and West Coast. 

Established in 1999 and jointly owned by the region’s nine Councils, CCA exists to help them 

achieve regional outcomes and maintain strong local government, by working together. 

Our three functions are regional economic development, natural resource management 

(NRM) and strategic services, the latter of which was established in 2019 and is all about 

pursuing partnerships and opportunities that benefit our business, our owners, and our region. 

The long-term sustainability and future prosperity of the region is at the heart of everything we 

do. 

 

Cradle Coast Snapshot 1  

Representing one in five Tasmanians 

  
 

 

Cradle Coast Region  

Nine Councils 

Population 

112,765 
Jobs  

49,487 local jobs 

44,353 employed  

 
 

 

Geographical Size 

23,065 sq. km 

(one-third of Tasmania) 

Median Age 

44 years  

 

Enterprises 

7,843 

 
1 Based on Cradle Coast Community Profile data 

https://profile.id.com.au/cradle-coast
https://www.hrplustas.com.au/vacancies/physiotherapy/physiotherapist-physiotas-north-west-coast
https://www.google.com.au/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&ved=2ahUKEwie4K3dgK_kAhVJbysKHS73BAAQjRx6BAgBEAQ&url=https%3A%2F%2Ftec.tas.gov.au%2FLocal_Government_Elections%2F&psig=AOvVaw0sj69XfKtIQfi49xJsb0d0&ust=1567406055787869
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A MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF 

REPRESENTATIVE 

 

Reflecting on the year that has been, it is hard to think 

about anything beyond it being the year of COVID-

19, with our plans on hold, at home, on-line, 

concerned for our families, our communities and our 

future.  In the wake of the pandemic, the likes of 

which we have never experienced, the word 

‘resilient’ keeps echoing in my mind.  Described as 

strong, robust, irrepressible, spirited, and buoyant, the 

word seems most apt when thinking about the way 

in which Cradle Coast Authority (CCA), our Member 

Councils, our communities and our region operated 

throughout this time.   

Our Councils immediately sprang into emergency 

management mode, caring for and safeguarding 

our communities, maintaining essential services, 

putting COVID plans, new regulations, and hardship 

policies in place, and liaising with business and 

community.  Meanwhile, the team at CCA turned 

their focus to setting up a Regional Restart Hub, 

assisting business and industry with free mentoring 

and easy access to funding information on their 

website.  Throughout the chaos and disruption, CCA 

quickly adjusted and got on with business.  Annual 

Plan actions were completed, the Regional 

Economic Development Steering Group was 

appointed, and significant progress was made on all 

our major initiatives, including the Regional Futures 

Plan, Shared Services Strategy, and our Natural 

Resource Management projects.  An incredible 

effort during a most challenging year, and I 

congratulate the team at CCA on their 

achievements.   

A highlight for the year is the Latrobe to Ambleside 

section of the Coastal Pathway which is well 

underway and already proving popular with walkers 

and cyclists.  Planning is also progressing on the 

Sulphur Creek to Penguin and Leith to Don 

sections.   Jointly funded by the State and Federal 

Governments along with Latrobe, Devonport City 

and Central Coast Councils, the $14.4m Coastal 

Pathway extension project will see 21 km of 

additional pathway completed, delivering great 

economic and social benefits for our region. 

Our Councils have also valued CCA’s work with the 

Local Government School-based Apprenticeships 

program, placing young people in Councils and the 

workforce development planning being undertaken 

to help Councils maintain a vibrant, skilled workforce 

into the future.  This work is all part of the Shared 

Services Strategy endorsed by owner 

Representatives this year. The strategy has also 

delivered an internal audit program which has 

already been taken up by some Councils. 

Councils have gained value from the regular visits 

made by the Chair, CEO and other managers, and 

the detailed Quarterly Progress Reports. Our 

Councils have so much to gain and far greater 

power when working collectively and CCA has 

continued to represent us and advocate on issues of 

importance for our region.  Industry, state, and 

federal governments recognise the value of working 

with all nine Councils through CCA, which is 

providing leadership, clear priorities and strong 

advocacy.   

Thank you to all who have engaged in the activities 

of CCA during the year and special thanks to 

Deputy Chief Representative, Mayor Peter Freshney, 

Chair Sid Sidebottom and his fellow Directors, CEO 

Daryl Connelly and all the staff for their leadership 

and commitment to ensuring CCA remains a 

regional body we can all be proud of.  This year has 

shown us life is unpredictable, but it has also 

reinforced we are strong, united and most of all, we 

are resilient. 

 

Mayor Jan Bonde 

Chief Representative 
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A MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIR 
 

In many ways, 2020 is a year like no other! 

COVID-19 arrived and is still playing itself out locally, 

nationally, and globally. It may have negatively 

affected us, but it will not define us as a region. Indeed, 

faced with its insatiable health, social, and economic 

demands we have as a region, State and nation tackled 

it head-on and in the main, together.  

The Board thanks our Member Councils for their on-going 

support of CCA throughout the pandemic and we 

recognise their significant individual attempts to help 

mitigate its effects on their constituents.  

The Board also wishes to acknowledge and thank our 

CEO and his team for their selfless approach to tackling 

the effects of the pandemic. They voluntarily took a pay 

cut, and worked assiduously to progress our NRM, shared 

services and economic development work while rapidly 

launching a series of initiatives to assist our region with 

recovery. The Board greatly appreciates their efforts, as 

well as the support of Tasmanian Division of CPA 

Australia, the University of Tasmania, and The Advocate, 

who all helped make our recovery efforts possible. I also 

thank my fellow Directors for voluntarily reducing their 

fees during these challenging times. 

This report outlines in detail the work of CCA during last 

financial year. A hallmark of our approach to doing 

business with and for our owners and partners is to 

provide transparency and to be accountable. I believe 

this Annual Report does this well, along with the regular 

Quarterly Reports which can be found on CCA’s 

“Choose Cradle Coast” website. 

The integration of NRM and economic development has 

progressed very well, and the Board wishes to thank all 

Committee Members and their respective Chairs, Peter 

Voller PSM and Sheree Vertigan AM, for positively 

supporting this process. 

Carrying out our important NRM projects, furthering 

regional economic development initiatives, working 

with our owners to share resources and opportunities, 

extending the Coastal Pathway, promoting our region ‘s 

tourism potential on national television through Award 

Winning Tasmania, and working actively with our various 

partners, have made up much of what we have done 

during 2019-20.  

 

The Board thanks greatly, out-going Director Andrew 

Wardlaw for the sterling contribution he made to CCA 

and our region and wishes him the very best for the 

future. We welcome in Andrew’s stead, Waratah-

Wynyard Council General Manager, Shane Crawford, 

and very much look forward to working with him. 

On a personal level, I wish to thank my fellow directors 

for their wise counsel, diligence, support, and 

encouragement as CCA continues to adapt and 

deliver. Thanks also to Mayors Bonde and Freshney for 

their leadership and support as Chief Representative 

and Deputy Chief Representative respectively, and to 

our CEO Daryl Connelly and his team for their 

dedicated, professional, hard work during these most 

challenging of times.   

 

Cheers, 

With thanks, 

 

The Hon. Sid Sidebottom 

Chair 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 

REPORT 

 

It is my pleasure to provide the Annual Report for the 

2019/20 financial year, the first full year I have overseen 

as CEO.  

The provision of an Annual Report is required under the 

CCA Rules and under the NRM funding deed that exists 

between us and the State Government. It is also one 

way of demonstrating our commitment to transparent, 

impactful and value for money public administration. 

Quarterly Progress Reports, “dashboard- style” financial 

reporting and a clearer, Strategic Plan with measurable 

targets, are other examples of best practice public 

administration we have implemented, not because 

anybody has asked us to, but because we are 

personally invested in CCA’s Vision, Purpose and 

Principles.  

Perhaps more importantly and more interestingly, every 

Annual Report tells a story, not about a dreary corporate 

entity, but about the team of people who make it tick. If 

you read this document carefully, you will gain a better 

understanding of the people who have chosen to serve 

the region through CCA, why they do it, how they do it 

and some of the challenges they have overcome and 

the tremendous potential that exists. 

Of course, there is a lot the project updates and other 

information does not reveal. Things like the voluntary pay 

cut staff and Directors took to keep the team together 

when COVID-19 hit, the countless extra hours people put 

in because for them CCA is so much more than just a 

job, and the outstanding goodwill that allowed major 

reform to occur more swiftly and effectively, than any of 

us thought possible.  

NRM operations 

A funding deed with the State Government requires us 

to report annually on our NRM operations, and the 

project summaries throughout this document effectively 

showcase our efforts to improve the environment and 

support sustainable agriculture. During the reporting 

period, this work has been guided by the Natural 

Resource Management Strategy for Cradle Coast 2015-

2020 as well as the objectives by our main NRM funding 

partners, the State and Australian Governments. 

A significant highlight was State Government investment 

in two projects contributing to our natural landscapes 

theme, relating to Little Penguin Conservation and 

responsible cat ownership. 

 

Another major highlight was Australian Government 

investment in five projects through the Regional Land 

Partnerships Program, contributed to our productive 

landscapes theme through soil management, and our 

natural landscapes theme through Giant Freshwater 

Crayfish recovery, Hooded Plover protection from feral 

cats and Coastal Saltmarsh rehabilitation. 

An important piece of work currently underway, is the 

development of the next Regional NRM Strategy in 

collaboration with other NRM organisations and the 

State Government.  

In addition to the very tangible on-ground change 

delivered through our projects, one of the most exciting 

developments for CCA during the year was the 

complete integration of our NRM team and activities 

within the broader business.  Much further reaching 

than the cessation of the old “Cradle Coast NRM” 

branding, this has delivered unprecedented 

cooperation not only between our economic 

development and NRM staff, but also between our NRM 

Committee, Regional Economic Development Steering 

Group, Board and Representatives. It is very exciting 

and provides CCA with a uniquely wholistic regional 

development capability and outlook. Our NRM 

expertise adds significant value to our economic 

development work, and vice versa. 

As well as my staff, I would especially like to thank 

Councillors, General Managers, Directors and 

Committee Members for their continued support as we 

aim to make our corner of the island an even better 

place to live, work and invest for the one in five 

Tasmanians who choose to live here, and the many 

other people who choose to visit or do business here. 

Best wishes,  

 

Daryl Connelly MBus 

Chief Executive Officer 
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VISION, PURPOSE AND PRINCIPLES  
CCA’s Vision and Purpose are 

underpinned by our commitment to our 

fundamental Principles. These principles 

guide the way CCA conducts its 

business and how CCA delivers all its 

activities and services for the benefit of 

the region. 

Vision 
A Region that is prospering as a result of strong 

Councils working together, where ratepayers, 

industry and government see the benefits of 

investing in the CCA model. In short, “Stronger 

Councils, Stronger Region”. 

Principles 
We will achieve our vision by 

consistently acting according to our 

principles. We take our responsibility as 

public administration professionals 

seriously. We are committed to value for 

money, impact, and transparency; we 

act with integrity, honestly and respect. 

Purpose 
To help Councils achieve regional outcomes 

and maintain strong local government, by 

working together. 

Agile Collaborative Optimistic Lean Growth Mindset 

We adapt and 

refocus quickly 

and easily, in 

response to 

change. 

We play to 

others’ strengths 

and listen with 

intent to 

understand and 

avoid 

duplication. 

We see the 

best possible 

outcome and 

strive for that. 

We use our 

resources wisely 

and keep things 

simple. If a 

longer meeting 

or document 

won’t add 

value, we’ll 

keep it short. 

We experiment, 

reflect, and 

innovate – we 

constantly ask 

ourselves “how 

can we do this 

better”? 

Stronger Councils, 

Stronger Region. 
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ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE 

CCA had 19 employees (15.3 full-time equivalents) as at reporting. Of these, 12 positions were 

fully funded by State Government and/or Australian Government funding. The remaining 

seven positions were partially funded by State Government and/or Australian Government 

funding through the provision of administrative project support. In addition to this, there are 

two co-funded PhD candidates and two honours students working on projects aimed at 

supporting the implementation of the Regional Futures Plan.  

The diagram below reflects the governance structure and functions of CCA. 

 

Usually the Mayor and General 

Manager of each Member 

Council. 
REPRESENTATIVES  

   

Council and Independent 

Directors plus Regional NRM 

Committee and Regional 

Economic Development Steering 

Group Chairs. 

BOARD 
Committees of the Board include:  

• Audit & Risk Committee 

• Regional NRM Committee 

• Regional Economic 

Development Steering Group 

   

 
General Management & 

Regional Economic Development 
 

   

 
Chief Executive Officer 

Daryl Connelly 
 

   

Strategic Services  
Natural Resource 

Management 

   

Director Strategic Services 

Claire Smith 
 

Regional NRM Manager 

Mike Thomson 
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COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES 

Our nine Member Councils appoint two Representatives, usually the Mayor and General 

Manager of each Member Council unless they are appointed to the Board, in which case the 

Deputy Mayor is appointed as a Representative instead. 

Council Representatives at 30 June 2020 

Burnie City Council 

Mayor Steve Kons 

Deputy Mayor Giovanna Simpson 

King Island Council 

Mayor Julie Arnold 

Greg Alomes, General Manager 

Central Coast Council 

Mayor Jan Bonde 2 

Sandra Ayton, General Manager 

Latrobe Council 

Mayor Peter Freshney 3 

Gerald Monson, General Manager 

Circular Head Council 

Mayor Daryl Quilliam 

Scott Riley, General Manager 

Waratah-Wynyard Council 

Mayor Robby Walsh 

Deputy Mayor Dr. Mary Duniam 

Devonport City Council 

Deputy Mayor Alison Jarman 

Matthew Atkins, General Manager 

West Coast Council 

Deputy Mayor Shane Pitt  

David Midson, General Manager 

 Kentish Council 

Mayor Tim Wilson 

Deputy Mayor Don Thwaites 

We would also like to thank Paul West, former General Manager (Devonport City Council) 

who served as a Representative during the 2019/20 financial year. 

 
2 Chief Representative – Chair of the Representatives 
3 Deputy Chief Representative – Deputy Chair of the Representatives 
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BOARD  

In 2019/20 CCA had an eight-member Board, appointed by the Representatives. The Board is 

responsible for CCA’s strategic direction, appointment of Committees and other fiduciary 

duties. Membership of the Board is skills-based along with one General Manager and two 

Mayoral Representatives appointed from our Member Councils. 

Directors at 30 June 2020 

The Hon. Sid Sidebottom (Independent Chair) 

Mayor Annette Rockliff (Mayoral Representative)  

Ms Kathy Schaefer PSM (Independent Member)  

Mr Malcolm Wells (Independent Member and Audit and Risk Committee Chair) 

Mr Peter Voller PSM (Regional NRM Committee Chair)  

Mayor Phil Vickers (Mayoral Representative)  

Ms Sheree Vertigan AM (REDSG Chair) commenced July 2019 

Mr Shane Crawford (General Manager Representative) commenced June 2020 

We would also like to thank Andrew Wardlaw, former General Manager (Burnie City Council) 

who served as a Director during the 2019/20 financial year.  
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OUR TEAM 

As at September 2020  

    
Daryl Connelly 

Chief Executive Officer 

Claire Smith 

Director Strategic Services 

Mike Thomson 

Regional NRM Manager 

Sophie Wright 

Executive Assistant to CEO 

    
Carol Bracken 

Program Manager – Regional 

Futures Plan 

Jemma O’Neill 

Corporate Services 

Coordinator 

Spencer Gibbs 

Program Manager – Regional 

Land Partnerships 

Patrick Harvey 

Finance 

Coordinator/Accountant 

    
Prakash Thapa 

Administration & Finance 

Assistant  

 

Matthew Dickson 

Council Workforce 

Development Officer 

Iona Flett 

NRM Planning & MERI 

Coordinator 

Anna Wind 

Environment Project 

Coordinator 

     
Hannah Sadler 

NRM Engagement 

Officer 

Dr Margot Oorebeek 

Regional Cat 

Management 

Coordinator 

Ali Dugand 

Agriculture Project 

Coordinator 

Tanya Denison 

Future Energy 

Facilitator 

Dr Tom O’Malley 

Regional Agirculture 

Landcare Facilitator 

     
Deanna Hutchinson 

PhD Candidate, 

Centre of Social 

Impact – Swinburne 

University of 

Technology  

 

Samuel Hong 

PhD Candidate, 

University of Tasmania 

 

Mary Roddy 

Regional Economic 

Development Officer 

(Coastal Pathway) 

 

Fiona Marshall 

Agriculture Project 

Coordinator 

Sarah Walton 

School-based 

Apprentice 
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW 
Performance Snapshot 

 

Where the Dollars Come From 

 

Expenditure by Program/Project 

 

Executive Overview 

43 actions set 

41 actions achieved 
95% 
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Reporting on the 2019/20 Annual Plan 

CCA’s 2019/20 Annual Plan was developed around three priority areas and indicates actions 

and outcomes the business pursued through its own operations to deliver on regional goals. A 

summary of the 2019/20 Annual Plan along with the status and outcome of each deliverable 

is detailed on the following pages. Of the 43 actions set, 41 actions were achieved. The key 

deliverables that escaped us, were the development of a Regional NRM Investment 

Prospectus, and establishment of a Stakeholder Advisory Group. The Regional NRM Investment 

Prospectus will be developed when we finalised the new Regional NRM Strategy. The exact 

nature of a Stakeholder Advisory Group is still being considered by the NRM Committee as we 

move to settle into a fully integrated business model.  

2019/20 Annual Plan Actions 

Final progress report for period ending 30 June 2020 

   

Planned target achieved In progress Not progressed or deferred 

  

Image from left to right: Mayor Peter Freshney, Joan Rylah Former MP, Mayor Annette Rockliff, Mayor Jan Bonde, 

Daryl Connelly, Keith Price, Michael Fergusson MP. 
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1 Regional Economic 

Development 
Making our region an even better place to work, visit, learn and invest 

Action Long-term outcome Key deliverable Status 

Support the 

implementation of 

the Regional Futures 

Plan 

More jobs, better jobs. 

The Regional Futures Plan is 

established as an effective 

overarching economic 

development framework for 

the region. 

Establish an overarching governance 

framework: 

• Execute MoUs with key agencies 

• Execute Shared Service Agreements 

• Establish ‘Core Team’ working 

arrangements 

 

Establish the Regional Economic 

Development Steering Group (REDSG). 

 

Establish Working Groups (WG) including: 

• Education and Training 

• Renewable Energy 

• Choose Cradle Coast (retention & 

attraction) 

• Events 

• Arts & Culture 

 

Develop a Regional Investment Framework 

(RIF). 

 

Map the entrepreneurial ecosystem 

including the identification of gaps and 

opportunities (Swinburne PhD initiative).  

Establish the Food Producers’ Network. 

 

Initiate other Regional Futures Plan projects. 
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Making our region an even better place to work, visit, learn and invest 

Action Long-term outcome Key deliverable Status 

Build the Coastal 

Pathway 

improvements 

Improved community health, 

wellbeing, and connectedness 

across the region; supporting 

future cycling-related 

economic development 

opportunities. 

Complete detailed designs and obtain 

development application approvals for all 

sections.  

Commence and manage construction. 

 

Execute Deed with State Government. 

 

Manage the 

establishment of 

farm vehicle 

washdown facilities 

Improved biosecurity, amenity, 

and animal welfare. 

Complete request for information and 

secure funding. 

 

Assist with hosting 

the Australian 

Regional Tourism 

Convention 

Increased capacity and 

capabilities of stakeholders 

and greater regional profile. 

Host the Australian Regional Tourism 

Convention (ARCT) in October 2019 in 

collaboration with Devonport City Council, 

Department of State Growth and Business 

Events Tasmania. 

 

Complete the 

Award-Winning 

Tasmania television 

series 

Increased regional exposure as 

a food tourism destination. 

Manage contract delivery. 

 

 
Image from left to right (REDSG Members and CCA staff): Catherine Stark, Daryl Connelly, Sheree Vertigan AM, Jim Ertler, Professor 

Jim Cavaye, Craig Perkins, Vonette Mead, Stacey Sheehan, Tim Hess, Lara Hendriks, Ian Jones, and Carol Bracken. 
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2 Natural Resource 

Management 
Improving our environment and supporting sustainable agriculture 

Action Long-term outcome Key deliverable Status 

Undertake regional 

NRM planning 

Stakeholders are engaged with 

the Regional NRM Strategy 

and Investment Prospectus 

which supports a collaborative 

approach to addressing 

regional NRM priorities. 

Establish a Stakeholder Advisory Group to 

guide strategic decision making and 

advocate for Regional NRM.  

Review the 2015-20 Regional NRM Strategy, 

including identification of synergies with RFP 

and opportunities to collaborate with 

Councils. 
 

Develop a Regional NRM Investment 

Prospectus. 
 

Deliver Regional 

Land Partnership 

(RLP) services 

RLP projects successfully 

engage the community and 

deliver stated project 

outcomes. 

Establish Project Reference Groups. 

 

Develop Community Participation and 

Communication Plans. 

 

Deliver RLP projects (on-going through to 

June 2023): 

• RLP Core Services 

• Regional Agriculture Landcare 

Facilitator (RALF) 

• Protecting Our Productive Soils 

• Coastal Saltmarsh Recovery in Robbins 

Passage and Surrounds 

• Creating a Hooded Plover Stronghold 

on Three Hummock Island 

• Giant Freshwater Crayfish Recovery 

• Rice Grass Removal from the Rubicon-

Port Sorell Estuary 

 

Deliver on-ground 

NRM projects 

Effective partnerships and 

diversified funding streams 

deliver successful regional NRM 

priority projects. 

Deliver projects as determined by funding 

partners to address regional NRM priorities, 

including: 

• Little Penguin Conservation 
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Improving our environment and supporting sustainable agriculture 

Action Long-term outcome Key deliverable Status 

Implement the 

Tasmanian Cat 

Management Plan 

(TCMP) 

The Tasmanian community is 

well-informed on cat 

management issues leading to 

more responsible cat 

ownership and management. 

Engage key stakeholders and establish 

strategic partnerships to facilitate 

collaborative cat management.  

Develop and implement awareness and 

education programs. 

 

Assist Councils to develop policies and 

compliance programs in accordance with 

TCMP.  

Conduct the first annual review of the 

strategic plan in conjunction with the state-

wide TCMP team and adapt where 

necessary. 
 

 

 
Image: CCA staff with David mangenner Gough at panatana. 

  



 

CRADLE COAST AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2020 18 

 

3 Strategic Services 

Pursuing opportunities for our business, our owners, and our region 

Action Long-term outcome Key deliverable Status 

Attract, influence, 

and manage private 

and public sector 

funding to achieve 

better regional 

outcomes 

Improved long-term financial 

sustainability leading to 

increased value of the CCA 

model to owners. 

Develop and implement a stakeholder 

engagement plan to complement project 

level planning.  

Advocate for regional projects to attract 

private and/or public investment in the 

region.  

Secure funding for relevant projects and 

strategic services initiatives. 

 

Deliver the Local Government Australian 

School-based Apprenticeship Program (on-

going through to 2021).  

Plan, coordinate, 

facilitate, advocate, 

and otherwise act 

on behalf of 

Councils, when 

required 

Greater capacity to deliver 

and support Councils, 

increasing the value of the 

CCA model to owners. 

Evaluate requests and opportunities and act 

on behalf of Councils (to be determined 

based on needs) where strategic alignment 

is achieved. 
 

Assist with the 

implementation of 

additional Shared 

Services and 

collaborative 

working 

arrangements 

Increased ratepayer and 

government confidence in 

Councils – Stronger Councils, 

Stronger Region. 

Develop an internal audit program for 

Member Council consideration. 

 

Establish program of events for Local 

Government networking. 

 

Deliver regional events calendar through 

events working group. 

 

Develop a Shared Services Strategy to be 

endorsed by the Representatives. 

 

Promote Local 

Government careers 

and help Councils 

with workforce 

development 

Councils have the right people 

in the right roles to meet 

service delivery needs. 

Deliver the Regional Employment Trials (RET) 

Project. 
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Pursuing opportunities for our business, our owners, and our region 

Action Long-term outcome Key deliverable Status 

Increase Member 

Council and 

external stakeholder 

communication 

Increased stakeholder 

confidence. 

Biannual attendance at Council 

workshops. 

 

Maintain monthly newsletter and social 

media. 

 

Continued radio, television, and 

newspaper coverage. 

 

Public presentations. 

 

Regular, transparent, and meaningful 

reporting to our owners and external 

stakeholders.  

Increase 

organisational 

performance (staff 

morale and 

capabilities) 

Increased confidence in CCA’s 

capability and capacity to 

deliver – CCA has the right 

people and the right skills to 

achieve its purpose. 

Develop learning and development plans 

for all staff. 

 

Embed project management framework 

into business practices. 

 

Review Strategic Plan (2017-20 Corporate 

Plan). 

 

Establish clear financial goals and 

continue to enhance and streamline 

financial reporting.  

 
Image (above left): Claire Smith and Gerald Monson, General Manager Latrobe and Kentish Councils General Manager.  

Image (above right) Regional Employment Trials Project. 
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PROJECT HIGHLIGHTS AND 

SUMMARY OF PROGRESS 

REGIONAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT – MAKING OUR REGION 

AN EVEN BETTER PLACE TO WORK, VISIT, LEARN AND INVEST. 

Implementing the Regional Futures Plan (RFP) 

The RFP provides a blueprint for a new way of doing regional economic development, backed by 

industry, government, and the university sector. It aims to boost regional growth and foster a more 

resilient economy, lifting the living standards of residents in the region. 

The RFP was endorsed by Member Councils in late 2018. CCA obtained funding for implementation 

from the State Government in mid-2019 and established Working Groups to be involved in a 

collaborative approach to economic development in the region. 

The RFP is tackling three key issues: 

• People not engaged in work or education will further entrench disadvantage. 

• An ageing workforce, static population and out-migration of young people will cause 

economic and social change. 

• A shortage of relevant skills in the workforce is limiting industries, competitiveness, and 

growth. 

Highlights and outcomes 

• Nine local Councils working together strategically for the benefit of the region - working 

collaboratively will bring greater change and results. 

• Overarching governance framework established, including MoU’s with key agencies, 

Regional Economic Development Steering Group (REDSG) comprising government, industry 

and community leaders, Shared Service agreements with Member Councils and 

establishment of ‘Core Team’ working arrangements. 

• Working Groups established, including Education and Training, Renewable Energy, Choose 

Cradle Coast (retention and attraction), Events and Arts and Culture. 

• Scope of Working Groups defined, action plans developed, and project initiated. 

• We joined forces with the University of Tasmania and CPA Australia to establish the Regional 

Restart Hub encompassing free mentoring, the Cradle Coast Funding Finder, a free service to 

assist the community to find funding fast, along with useful resources. More than two dozen 

professionals continue to volunteer their time mentoring local businesses, clubs, and not-for-

profit organisations. 

• A partnership was established with The Advocate and the University of Tasmania to publish a 

series of ‘Reimagining Our Region’ articles each Friday from July 2020 onwards. 

• A Regional COVID-19 Recovery Plan was developed, with several submissions made to the 

Premier’s Economic and Social Recovery Advisory Council (PESRAC) to advocate for 

regionally led and informed, economic recovery responses aligned with existing economic 

and community development structures including the RFP approach. 

Project partners: State Government, Member Councils, Industry and University sector. 

https://www.cradlecoast.com/regional-restart-hub/
https://www.cradlecoast.com/regional-restart-hub/
https://www.cradlecoast.com/regional-restart-hub/funding-finder/
https://www.cradlecoast.com/reimagining/
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Regional Investment Framework (RIF) 

As part of the RFP, the RIF provides a systematic approach to identifying and securing support for 

regionally important projects. The Framework is a key deliverable of the RFP and a method to seek 

support for regionally significant projects. The REDSG will maintain a list of regionally important projects 

- reviewed and published quarterly. The first list was released in early 2020. The purpose of the list is for 

our region to speak with one voice in support of regionally significant projects that will drive positive 

economic change. 

Highlights and outcomes 

• The framework provides a way for people to seek CCA’s help advocating for regionally 

important projects and allows our region to speak with one voice when it comes to telling 

governments what is important to us. 

• The RIF was developed, finalised, and released in 2019.. 

• Initial project submissions assessed against the framework. 

• The first list of RIF Projects of Regional Importance finalised and announced. 

 Project Partners: State Government, Member Councils, Industry and University sector. 

 

Image (above left): Daryl Connelly and Professor 

Robyn Eversole, Centre for Social Impact 

Swinburne University. 

 

Image (above middle): Daryl Connelly, Mayor Jan 

Bonde and Sebastian Geers, Welcoming Cities. 
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Constructing the Coastal Pathway  

Jointly funded by the State and Australian Governments along with Latrobe, Devonport City and 

Central Coast Councils the $14.4m Coastal Pathway extension project will see 21 km of additional 

pathway built between Latrobe and Sulphur Creek between 2020 and 2022. 

Highlights and outcomes 

• The project will build connections between 

populous locations along the Cradle Coast, 

increasing economic and tourism opportunities 

along the route. 

• Increased safety for cyclists and pedestrians. 

• Providing opportunities for exercise, health, and 

wellbeing for residents and visitors. 

• Completed detailed designs and obtained 

development approvals for the Latrobe to 

Ambleside section. 

• Engaged various stakeholders in negotiations and 

prepared development applications for submission 

to Devonport City and Central Coast Councils. 

• Commenced construction of Latrobe to Ambleside 

section. 

Project Partners: Australian Government, State Government and Local Government. 

Farm Vehicle Washdown and Effluent Dumping Facilities 

This project will see the construction of modern washdown and effluent dumping facilities at Smithton, 

Burnie, Devonport and King Island for livestock transport and other vehicles. 

Highlights and outcomes  

• Construction of the facilities will provide increased safety to the public by removing the risk of 

spillages on our roads. 

• Improved animal welfare during transportation. 

• Improved working standards for drivers. 

• Reduces the risk of transferring disease and weeds between farms. 

• Request for information completed and funding secured.  

• Contracts awarded for feasibility and demand studies regarding facility locations. 

Project Partners: Australian Government. 

Image: Latrobe to Ambleside section of the Coastal 

Pathway. 
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Food Producers’ Network 

This initiative will support start-up agritourism, food and drink businesses in the region. In partnership with 

new food business incubator, Seedlab Tasmania, CCA will support the delivery of several business, boot 

camps and masterclasses between Smithton, Devonport, which will form the basis of a Food 

Producers’ Network. 

Highlights and outcomes 

• CCA is supporting Seedlab Tasmania to deliver subsidised masterclass training to food 

producers in the region. 

• Masterclasses will bring subject matter experts to the region to share their knowledge of food 

manufacturing, agritourism and small business success. This program has moved online due 

to COVID-19. 

Project Partners: Australian Government, Local Government, and Industry. 

Cradle Coast Future Energy Hub 

A CCA and industry partnership established to showcase Cradle 

Coast’s future energy potential. The Cradle Coast Future Energy 

Hub (The Hub) will be a central place for industry participants to 

host community and industry engagement activities and a place 

for the community to learn about the range of renewable energy 

opportunities in our region. 

 

Highlights and outcomes  

• For more than a century, renewable energy has been powering Tasmania. The state has one 

of the two largest hydropower systems in the nation and some of the best wind resources in 

the world. This rich history and expertise in renewables positions Tasmania well for a changing 

energy future. 

• As home to the site of proposed additional interconnection with Victoria (Marinus Link) and 

all three short-listed sites for pumped hydro (Battery of the Nation), as well as many potential 

renewable energy generation projects, the growth of the renewable energy industry will be 

a key driver of the Cradle Coast’s future economy. 

• The Cradle Coast Future Energy Hub was launched and established to showcase the Cradle 

Coast’s future energy potential. 

• Teaming agreement with TasNetworks finalised to fund a dedicated economic 

development officer to coordinate activities of The Hub.  

• The Hub is a ‘one-stop-shop’ for renewable energy development and a central place to 

host community and stakeholder engagement activities for the community to learn more 

about what is ahead for renewable energy in Tasmania. 

Project Partners: State Government, Local Government, and Industry.  
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King Island Future Leaders Program 

This project aims to establish The Coasters on King Island and provide important career-building and 

networking opportunities to help King Islanders overcome some of the challenges of isolation to help 

them thrive in their community. The program will also establish the Coasters on King Island, to help 

attract and retain young people and raise aspirations on the Island, which has been achieved by this 

initiative in other parts of the Cradle Coast Region. 

The Coasters’ aims and objectives are guided by the motto “Connect, Inspire, Grow”. Connect – a 

network of like-minded aspirational young people, who live and work on the Cradle Coast who wish 

to influence the region’s future. Inspire – sharing skills, knowledge, and experiences to raise aspirations. 

Grow – improve access to career development and mentoring opportunities.  

The King Island Future Leaders Program will bring the next generation of King Island business and 

community leaders into a supportive and engaging network which encourages people to pursue 

meaningful careers in their regional community. 

Highlights and outcomes 

• Information sessions were held on King Island to promote the project and engage King Island 

leaders. 

• Expressions of interests were sought seeking young King Island leaders to be involved in the 

first stage of the program. 

• 12 applications were received, and eight successful candidates were selected. 

• Seven King Islanders joined 30 or so other young Tasmanians who participated in professional 

development activities at The Coasters’ Winter Symposium at Stanley. A highlight of the 

Symposium was site visits to Woolnorth, Tarkine Fresh Oysters and Green Hills Abalone Farm. 

The Coasters’ Winter Symposium builds leadership capacity and capability and allowed King 

Island participants to expand their networks and build valuable relationships. 

• The second phase of the project saw Coasters from North-West Tasmanian visit King Island to 

share skills, knowledge, and experiences. Whilst on the island The Coasters coordinated and 

delivered a two-day program to re-engage King Island participants, consisting of industry 

visits, a leadership and resilience workshop, a networking event and a workshop to establish 

The Coasters on the island. 

 

Image: Claire Smith with project participants Stephanie Clayton (left) 

and Mason Wright (right). 

 

Project Partners: Australian Government, King 

Island Council, King Island Tourism and King 

Island Chamber of Commerce. 
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Regional Employment Trials 

Working with Member Councils, the project involved 

providing employability skills training to 70 jobseekers and 

one to two-week work placements with Member 

Councils. The project also saw Councils working together 

to streamline and improve recruitment and selection 

practices to reduce barriers to employment. 

 

Highlights and outcomes 

• Another fantastic example of Councils working together, that allows our Councils to model 

best practice in the community. 

• Workforce development is a huge challenge for our Member Councils, and engaging local 

people is a key strategy moving forward. 

• Training and work placements completed. 

• 19 job seekers were put through two weeks of training followed by work experience with 

Member Councils. 

• Member Councils supported the project with work experience placements, training, and 

guest speakers. 

• Two participants started working at Latrobe/Kentish Council and others gained 

apprenticeships and/or are considering studying at Tafe. 

• Several other participants who completed work experience with Member Councils 

confirmed to have been offered further employment. 

Project Partners: Australian Government and Member Councils. 

Kickstarting Energy Careers on the West Coast 

In partnership with Beacon Foundation and Granville Harbour Wind Farm, this project will provide West 

Coast students with the opportunity to engage with the renewable energy industry and partake in a 

two-day intensive project involving work-readiness education, mentoring and site tours. Beacon 

Foundation’s Growth Industry Preparation Programs promote Tasmania’s key industries to young 

Tasmanians and will help raise student, teacher, and parent awareness of the growing career 

opportunities. 

Highlights and outcomes 

• Due to Covid-19, this project was delayed 

by three months and will be completed in 

2020/21. 

• There are plans to extend the program to all 

Council areas in 2021. 

 

Project Partners: Industry and Beacon Foundation. 
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NATURAL RESOURCE MANAGEMENT – IMPROVING THE 

ENVIRONMENT AND SUPPORTING SUSTAINABLE AGRICULTURE. 

Protecting Our Productive Soils 

This project engages and supports farmers to 

build capacity to better manage hillslope 

erosion on mixed cropping farms and soil 

acidification on intensive grazing enterprises. 

The project utilises awareness-raising and 

capacity-building workshops, demonstration 

trials on commercial farms, and one-to-one 

farmer support to achieve practice change on 

the ground. With the aim to improve the 

sustainability of natural resource management 

across our productive landscapes. 
 

Image: Multi species cover crop established in steep cropping ground. 

Highlights and outcomes 

• Project agreements established with agribusiness, research and education project partners. 

• Commercial-size hillslope erosion demonstration trials established, including a mix of 

mechanical and precision techniques plus multi-species cover crops with monitoring 

underway. 

• Data collection and monitoring methods established. 

• Several successful workshops and field days held with farmers and lead agronomists. 

• Hillslope erosion management agreements in place with four farmers. 

• Commercial-size soil acidification demonstration trials established with monitoring underway. 

• Mentoring and monitoring progressed with five farmers who have Soil Acidification 

Management Agreements in place. 

Project partners: Australian Government. 

Coastal Saltmarsh Recovery in 

Robbins Passage and Surrounds 

This project aims to improve the condition and 

long-term protection of the Coastal Saltmarsh 

Threatened Ecological Community by 

targeting Rice Grass, the primary ecological 

threat to saltmarsh and by brokering and 

establishing conservation agreements with 

landholders to maintain and protect saltmarsh 

on their properties. 

 
Image: Migratory birds feeding in a saltmarsh. 
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Highlights and outcomes 

• Landholders with substantial saltmarsh assets identified. 

• Rice Grass control works completed for spraying season. 

• Site inspections of saltmarsh sites with potential saltmarsh parcels identified and mapped. 

• Project Information Sheet developed and distributed to private landholders who have 

saltmarsh on their properties. 

• Site inspections of private landholdings for 10 out of 20 properties completed identifying 

covenant potential. 

Project partners: Australian Government, Circular Head Landcare and Tasmanian Land 

Conservancy. 

Rice Grass Removal from the Rubicon-Port 

Sorell Estuary 

This project will improve the condition and the long-term 

protection of Coastal Saltmarsh and feeding habitat for 

migratory and resident birds, by targeting the primary 

ecological threat of the estimated 660 ha of Rice Grass in the 

Rubicon-Port Sorell Estuary through control and containment. 
 

Image: Rice Grass (Spartina anglica). 

Highlights and outcomes 

• Commenced community and stakeholder consultation. 

• Commenced Rice Grass weed control work at Narawntapu National Park. 

• Weed control work completed for 2019/20 spraying season. 

• Progressed aerial spraying permit application. 

Project Partners: Australian Government, Latrobe Council, Tasmanian Parks and Wildlife Service 

and DPIPWE-Biosecurity Tasmania. 

Giant Freshwater Crayfish Recovery  

This project will protect and improve priority stream 

habitat for the highly valued and vulnerable Giant 

Freshwater Crayfish (GFC). Working with 

landholders to establish conservation agreements 

and undertake riparian protection and 

rehabilitation works, the project will increase the 

area of the species range that is protected from 

further habitat loss and degradation. This is a very 

targeted project focussing on highest priority river 

sections across the Cradle Coast region to get 

maximum benefit in maintaining and improving 

GFC populations.  
Image: Juvenile Astacopsis gouldi. 
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Highlights and outcomes 

• Project agreements established with project partners. 

• Social research completed. 

• Stakeholder engagement and landholder visits completed to identify six priority areas. 

• Baseline monitoring completed on three priority areas. 

• Funding support guidelines, project information sheet and video produced and provided to 

landholders in priority areas and stakeholders. 

• First landholder agreement signed to undertake riparian rehabilitation works such as fencing, 

revegetation and off-stream watering. 

Project partners: Australian Government and Tasmanian Land Conservancy. 

Little Penguin Conservation Project  

This project was funded by the Department of Primary Industries, Parks, Water and Environment 

(DPIPWE) to increase public awareness of the threats to Tasmanian populations of the Little Penguin 

(Eudyptula minor). CCA was engaged to develop a community-based survey, monitoring program 

and framework to assess and mitigate threats to Little Penguin colonies across Tasmania. 

Highlights and outcomes 

• Created a Little Penguin online learning package. 

• Contributed to draft Little Penguin Toolkit which 

includes five community-based survey methods. 

• Developed a draft threat assessment framework to 

support the identification of threats to Little Penguins 

and the mitigation actions required to address those 

threats. 

Project Partners: DPIPWE and Tasmanian Penguin Advisory 

Group. 
 

Image: Little Penguin in a burrow (Photo credit Perviz 

Marker). 

 

Creating a Hooded Plover 

Stronghold on Three 

Hummock Island 

This project will protect the threatened 

beach-nesting shorebird species, the 

Hooded Plover on Three Hummock Island, 

by working towards the eradication of feral 

cats from the Island, as well as controlling 

the invasive weed, Sea Spurge, and 

moving marine debris.  
Image: A feral cat captured on a wildlife camera. 

http://www.cradlecoast.com/online-learning-packages/
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Highlights and outcomes 

• This RLP-funded project builds on the monitoring work started on Three Hummock Island 

during 2018/19 under a State Government funded project.  

• Baseline monitoring trips were completed in November and December 2019. Sea Spurge 

infestations were mapped, camera monitoring was repeated in association with cat 

trapping (to collar cats), and sites were established for “wing-count” cat activity monitoring 

and rodent monitoring. 

• Two cats were trapped and collared with GPS collars. The data from these collars will show 

habitat usage and range of the two collared cats.  

• A process was initiated with Tasmanian Parks and Wildlife Service (PWS) to obtain authority to 

undertake cat control activities via a Reserve Activity Assessment (RAA).  

• BirdLife Australia ecologists completed a baseline survey of Hooded Plovers on the island, 

showing that there are currently an estimated 21-24 adult birds using the island for nesting. 

• An Archaeological consultant engaged to complete an Aboriginal Heritage Assessment. 

Project Partners: Australian Government, DPIPWE-Biosecurity Tasmania, Tasmania Parks and Wildlife 

Service, Three Hummock Island lease managers and BirdLife Australia. 

Regional Agriculture Landcare Facilitator (RALF) 

The primary objective of this project is to promote sustainable agriculture practices by collaboration 

with farmers, farm production groups and industry. Communications and capacity-building initiatives 

around whole-farm planning play a role in this. Another key role of the RALF position is to provide 

support in the delivery of the sustainable agricultural project, Protecting our Productive Soils. 

Highlights and outcomes 

• Introduced a new species of dung beetle (Onthophagus vacca) to Tasmania and 

successfully established a spring-active beetle nursery colony, with a six-fold increase in 

beetle numbers. 

• Recruited five commercial farmers to set up spring-active dung beetle colonies on their 

farms. 

• Eight media articles published in The Advocate newspaper and Cradle to Coastlines 

newsletters. 

• State-wide Sustainable Agricultural engagement commenced. 

• Developed, launched, and supported the delivery of online Property Management Planning 

program for 25 landholders. 

• Supported Sustainable Agriculture project activities, including designing demonstration trials 

and writing summary reports for soil erosion and soil acidification demonstration trials. 

Project Partners: Australian Government. 
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Implementing the Tasmanian Cat Management Plan 

(TCMP)  

This project supports the implementation of the TCMP through developing and 

implementing awareness and education programs to improve levels of 

responsible cat ownership across the region. The project will also assist Councils 

in the development of policies linked to the TCMP including the development 

of by-laws and implementation of compliance programs and training 

programs for Council officers. 

 

Highlights and outcomes 

• A proposal to develop a Regional Cat Management Strategy prepared for presentation to 

the Member Council General Managers for approval. 

• Assisted in the development of the Pilot Cat Control Project at Preservation Bay for the 

Central Coast Council. 

• Created four educational videos and associated TV advertisements entitled ‘That’s Cats’ 

that have been launched by the Minister for Primary Industries and Water. The 

advertisements screened on television 504 times across three channels and the videos have 

been viewed over 8,700 times on Facebook. 

• Created six educational brochures on responsible cat ownership, highlighting the 

importance of containment, health, cat behaviour and surrendering a pet cat. 

• TassieCat Facebook page launched which gained over 2,000 followers. The TassieCat 

website was regularly updated and visitor numbers have doubled, consistently receiving 

approximately 475 visits per month. 

• Presented at the 2019 Australian Institute of Animal Management Conference. The 

presentation was entitled: The Tasmanian Cat Management Project: ‘the Tassie approach to 

state-wide cat management’. 

• Development of the Cradle Coast Cat Tracker Project underway. 

Project Partners: DPIPWE-Biosecurity Tasmania, NRM North, Kingborough Council, RSPCA, Just Cats 

Tasmania, Ten Lives Cat Centre and Local Government Association of Tasmania (LGAT). 
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STRATEGIC SERVICES – PURSUING OPPORTUNITIES FOR OUR 

BUSINESS, OUR OWNERS, AND OUR REGION. 

Local Government Australian School-based Apprenticeship (ASbA) 

Program 

Councils are looking to provide more jobs for young 

people and this program aims to make it easier for 

Councils, schools, and young people to navigate 

ASbAs. The project will increase the number of ASbAs 

within Councils, help Councils understand the benefits 

of ASbAs, and map ASbAs to areas of current and 

future skills shortages. This project also aims to support 

and increase the number of ASbA commencements 

within Councils in the future and is funded by the 

Australian Government under the $3.9 million North-

West Tasmania Job Generation Package through Skills 

Tasmania. 

Highlights and outcomes 

• Funding secured for Council Workforce Development Officer to deliver the project; the role 

helps Councils employ more School-based Apprentices. 

• Future workforce planning will help prioritise investments in recruitment and training to build 

the Local Government workforces. Investment in people has the potential to overcome the 

challenges of attracting critical skills our region faces. 

• Stakeholder Engagement Plan developed. 

• Schools, students, and Member Councils are ready to participate in ASbA. 

• Two ASbA students signed up and commenced employment. 

• ASbA survey developed and distributed to Member Councils. 

• Pathway Mapping work commenced. 

• Initial workforce analysis work completed with data collected from Member Councils to 

assist with Workforce Planning, identification of ASbA opportunities and other 

projects/programs to overcome skill gaps. 

• Regional local government workforce profile developed and presented to Member 

Councils. 

• Stage two developed in consultation with Department of Education (DoE) ASbA unit and 

Skills Tasmania in preparation for the next phase of project – recruitment campaign and 

ASbA intake for 2021. 

• Members Councils have committed and agreed to identify roles suitable for ASbA 

recruitment in 2021.  

Project partners: Australian Government, State Government, Skills Tasmania, and Member Councils. 

 

Image: Todd Ashdown MAS Experience and CCA School-based 

Apprentice Sarah Walton. 
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FINANCIAL REPORT 
Comprehensive Result 

The Independent Audit Report and Annual Financial Statements including notes to the accounts is 

presented in the following pages. The general purpose financial report meets the requirements of the 

Local Government Act 1993 (as amended) and Australian Accounting Standards and has been audited 

by the Tasmanian Audit Office. An unqualified audit opinion was issued by the Auditor General on 20 

October 2020. The financial report represents the overall financial position of CCA inclusive of Core 

Operations, Natural Resource Management (NRM), Regional Economic Development and Strategic 

Services functions. 

CCA reported a consolidated surplus of $4.6 million against a budgeted deficit of ($83k), representing 

an increase in work in progress (represented as a Contract Asset) and project reserves held at 30 June 

2020. This predominately relates to the Construction of the Coastal Pathway. The operating result 

exclusive of capital expenditure relating to the Coastal Pathway and before depreciation and 

amortisation was a surplus of $3.13 million (2019: ($362k) deficit). The discrepancy between the actual 

result and budget is due to income and expenditure relating to the Construction of the Coastal Pathway 

not included in approved budget estimates due to the timing and nature of the project. 

After accounting for outstanding creditors, leave provisions and other payables, CCA held net assets of 

$5.56 million at 30 June 2020 (30 June 2019: $1.27 million). Of net assets, $1.58 million represents 

construction WIP and $3.07 million represented unexpended grant funds held in accordance with grant 

funding conditions and/or project commitments. See note 19 of the audited Financial Statements for 

details of areas these funds are committed. 

From 1 July 2019, CCA adopted AASB 15 Revenue From Contracts with Customers, AASB 1058 Income of 

Not-For-Profit Entities and AASB 16 Leases using the modified retrospective method of transition, and AASB 

16 using a retrospective (partial) approach with cumulative catch-up with the date of initial application 

of 1 July 2019. Consequently, the comparative information presented in the financial statements has not 

been restated and continues to be reported under the previous standards of revenue and income. 

Presentation of both qualitative and quantitative disclosures for affected items along with corresponding 

adjustments to opening balances are included in the notes to the accounts where required. 

Financial Result 

2020  

$ 

2019  

$ 

Surplus/(deficit) and comprehensive result 4,625,440 (436,690) 

Cash assets 3,290,960 1,617,809 

Net assets 5,557,004 1,272,399 

Project reserves 3,071,573 4 646,134 

 

  

 
4 The increase in project reserves held at 30 June 2020 compared to 2019, relates to committed expenditure for the 

Construction of the Coastal Pathway.  
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Contributions received for Projects and Operations 

 2020 2019 

Income $ % $ % 

Australian Government 4,370,689 63 506,498 17 

State Government 1,053,836 15 1,013,699 34 

Local Government 361,564 6 361,564 12 

Industry/other 157,616 2 210,303 7 

Interest (re-invested) 16,347 0.2 31,419 1 

Member contributions     

Council contributions (core funding) 895,471 13 869,388 29 

Total 6,889,070 100 2,992,872 100 

Figure 1: 2019/20 Member Council contributions represented 13% of total revenue 
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Core Operations Performance 

‘Core Operations’ includes operating overhead expenses incurred on behalf of the business. During 

2019/20, projects and business units contributed $322,770 towards operating costs and internal support 

services, reported as ‘project contributions’ below. 

In 2019/20, Core Operations reported gross income of $1,676,684 and gross expenditure of $1,451,055 

inclusive of contributions made to projects and business unit activities. 

Consolidated Income Statement 5 

For the year ended 30 June 2020 

 2020 2019 

Income $ % $ % 

Council Contributions 895,471 53 869,388 49 

Project Contributions 627,079 37 803,376 46 

Other Income 154,132 9 94,992 5 

Total Income 1,676,683 100 1,767,756 100 

Expenses     

Expenses from Ordinary Activities 462,600 32 384,571 21 

Employee Expenses 553,285 38 607,860 34 

Project Delivery Expenses 434,903 30 822,890 45 

Total Expenses 1,451,788 100 1,815,321 100 

Net Surplus/(Deficit) (225,895)  (47,565)  

The Core Operating result for the year ended 30 June 2020 before depreciation and amortisation 

expenses, was a surplus of $225,895 (2019 deficit: $47,565). 

Core Operating project expenditure for 2019/20 included non-reoccurring contract payments of $83,250 

made to Cultivate Productions for the production and delivery of Award-Winning Tasmania. Other 

project expenditure reported relates to contributions towards external service delivery and regional 

economic development project activities. 

  

  

 
5 The information presented has been compiled from audited financial statements relating to ‘Core Operations’. 
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Regional Natural Resource Management 

CCA’s NRM function delivers Regional NRM services on behalf of the Australia Government and State 

Government. During 2019/20 NRM funding contributed $301,591 towards overhead costs and internal 

corporate support services.  

In 2019/20, CCA reported income of $1,538,220 and expenditure of $1,137,957 for Regional NRM, the 

statement below represents the consolidated performance of Regional NRM activities. This year’s surplus 

of $400,263 represents an increase in project reserves as at 30 June 2020, comprising predominately of 

Australian Government funding relating to Regional Land Partnership projects. 

Consolidated Income Statement 6 

For the year ended 30 June 2020 

 2020 2019 

Income $ % $ % 

State Government 417,607 27 645,695 83 

Australian Government 1,113,355 72.5 74,046 10 

Other Income 7,258 0.5 54,182 7 

Total Income 1,538,220 100 773,923 100 

Expenses     

Employee Expenses 566,022 50 597,385 52 

Project Delivery Expenses 7 453,439 40 137,520 12 

Other Operating Expenses 118,496 10 405,498 36 

Total Expenses 1,137,957 100 1,140,402 100 

Net surplus/(deficit) 400,263  (366,480)  

     

Comprehensive Result 
 

2020  

$ 
 

2019  

$ 

Opening Reserves 8 1,790 628,372 

Surplus/(Deficit) 400,263 (366,480) 

Closing Reserves 9 402,053 261,893 

After accounting for outstanding creditors and leave provisions, CCA held consolidated reserves of 

$402,053. Total reserves held include: Regional Land Partnerships $371,152 (2019: Nil), State Support for 

Regional NRM $3,219 (2019: $83,479), Implementing the TCMP $1,311 (2019: $118,018) and other 

standalone State Government projects $24,581 (2019: $53,192). 

 

 
6 The information presented has been compiled from audited financial statements relating to funding received for 

Natural Resource Management. 

7 Excludes employee expenses incurred for project delivery. 

8 Opening Reserves held adjusted in accordance with adoption of new and revised accounting standards. 

9 Reported reserves held at 30 June 2020 is inclusive of ‘residual project funds’ and year-end operating 

surplus/(deficit) results, however, excludes revenue received in advance recognised as a financial liability. 
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Review of Financial Performance 

Council 

contributions 

In 2020, CCA applied a two per cent increase in Member Council contributions, 1.34 

per cent lower than the council cost indexation. The small increase was applied to 

provide for annual increases in fixed costs. 

Cost control There was significant effort reviewing how business was conducted at both an 

organisational and business unit level to integrate business activities, reducing costs, 

streamlining processes, and delivering greater transparency. This work is ongoing 

and will create sustainable value and deliver a stronger focus on project and 

resource management. 

Operating 

Expenses 

(OPEX) 

Following significant reductions over the previous three years, between 2019 and 

2020 operating expenditure remained on par when adjusted for lease expenses 

treated as amortisation in the 2020 accounts. 

Organisational practices and processes continued to be streamlined to create 

efficiencies and further control operating expenditure in line with organisational 

reform initiatives. 

Employee 

expenses 

Overall, employee expenses were slightly above budget due to approved budget 

figures excluding NRM operations and resourcing. At the time the annual budget 

was prepared, a detailed NRM operations budget was still being developed as part 

of our Regional Land Partnerships (RLP) bid submission. Employment Agreement 

negotiations and staff appointments relating to the successful bid submission were 

confirmed and provided to the Board after the annual budget approval process. 

 

Claire Smith CPA 

Director Strategic Services 
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AUDIT REPORT 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Statement of Comprehensive Income 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2020 

 Note 2020 

$ 

2019 

$ 

 
Income 

   

Government Grants 3 5,424,525 1,480,197 

Council Contributions 4 895,471 869,388 

Interest Received  16,347 31,419 

Other Income 5 552,727 611,870 

Total Income  6,889,070 2,992,874 

 
Expenses 

   

Employee Benefits 6 1,344,733 1,500,691 

Project Materials and Services 7 394,941 1,405,308 

Depreciation and Amortisation 8 130,837 73,817 

Other Operating Expenses 9 374,869 433,303 

Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets  5,807 1,069 

Interest on Borrowings  12,441 15,376 

Total Expenses  2,263,629 3,429,564 

Net result from transactions (net operating balance)  4,625,440 (436,690) 
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Statement of Financial Position 

As at 30 June 2020 

  
 

Note 2020 

$ 

2019 

$ 

Assets 

Current Assets 

    

Cash  10 3,290,960 1,617,809 

Receivables  11 1,799,293 288,858 

Prepayments   4,735 7,118 

Total Current Assets   5,094,987 1,913,785 

 
Non-Current Assets 

    

Plant and Equipment  12 116,866 144,711 

Leasehold Improvements  12 148,459 200,863 

Right-of-Use Assets  12 106,289 - 

Intangible Assets  13 208,125 124,875 

Contract Asset  12 1,580,691  

Total Non-Current Assets   2,160,430 470,449 

Total Assets   7,255,417 2,384,234 

 

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

    

Payables  14 864,060 776,923 

Provisions  16 105,651 66,245 

Borrowing  17 61,844 58,888 

Lease Liabilities  15 50,736 - 

Other Liabilities  21 411,680 - 

Total Current Liabilities   1,493,972 902,056 

 
Non-Current Liabilities 

    

Provisions  16 15,275 14,322 

Borrowings  17 133,614 195,458 

Lease Liabilities  15 55,553 - 

Total Non-Current Liabilities   204,442 209,780 

Total Liabilities   1,698,414 1,111,836 

Net Assets   5,557,003 1,272,399 

 
Equity 

    

Project Reserves  18 3,071,573 646,134 

Accumulated Surplus / Other Equity   2,485,430 626,265 

Total Equity   5,557,003 1,272,399 
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Statement of Cashflows 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2020 

 Note 2020 

$ 

2019 

$ 

  Inflows Inflows 

 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

 (Outflows) (Outflows) 

Grant Funding and Other Receipts  5,645,380 2,728,740 

Payments to Contractors and Suppliers  (539,030) (1,299,276) 

Payments to Employees  (1,496,661) (1,655,319) 

Interest on Borrowings  (12,441) (15,376) 

GST Refunded/(Remitted)  (36,798) 24,913 

Interest Received  16,799 31,419 

Net Cash Provided / Used in Operating Activities 19 3,577,248 (184,899) 

 
Cash Flows from Investing Activities 

Proceeds from Sale of Plant and Equipment 

  

 

50 

 

 

- 

Acquisition of Property and Infrastructure (Contract Asset)  (1,580,691) - 

Acquisition of Intangible Assets  (208,125) (124,875) 

Acquisition of Plant and Equipment  (14,187) (8,379) 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities  (1,802,953) (133,254) 

 
Cash Flows from Financing Activities 

Repayment of Borrowings 

  

 

(58,887) 

 

 

(55,821) 

Repayment of Leases  (42,257) - 

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities  (101,144) (55,821) 

    

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash Held  1,673,151 (373,974) 

Cash at Beginning of Financial Year  1,617,809 1,991,783 

Cash at End of Financial Year 10 3,290,960 1,617,809 
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Statement of Changes in Equity 

As at 30 June 2020 

 Note Unexpended 

Grant Reserves 

Surplus Retained 

Total Equity 

2020  $ $ $ 

Balance as at 1 July 2019 20 297,859 633,706 931,565 

Net Surplus / (Deficit)  - 4,625,440 4,625,440 

Transfer to / from Reserves  2,773,715 (2,773,715) - 

Balance as at 30 June 2020  3,071,573 2,485,431 5,557,004 

     

2019  $ $ $ 

Balance as at 1 July 2018  1,239,739 469,350 1,709,089 

Net Surplus / (Deficit)  - (436,690) (436,690) 

Transfer to / from Reserves  (593,605) 593,605 - 

Balance as at 30 June 2019 20 646,134 626,265 1,272,399 
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Notes to and forming part of the General Purpose Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2020 

Note 1 Significant Account Policies 

1A General Information 

Cradle Coast Authority (CCA) is a Joint Authority established under Section 30 of the Local Government Act 1993 

(as amended) with participating Member Councils being Burnie City, Central Coast, Circular Head, Devonport 

City, Kentish, King Island, Latrobe, Waratah-Wynyard, and West Coast. 

The purpose of CCA is to help Councils achieve regional outcomes and maintain strong local government, by 

working together. 

1B Basis of Accounting 

These financial statements are a general purpose financial report that consists of a Statement of Comprehensive 

Income, Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, and Notes 

accompanying the Financial Statements. 

The general purpose financial report complies with applicable Australian Accounting Standards and other 

authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the Local Government 

Act 1993 (as amended). 

CCA has determined it does not have profit generation as a prime objective. Consequently, where appropriate, 

CCA has elected to apply options and exemptions within accounting standards applicable to not-for-profit 

entities. 

This financial report has been prepared under the historical cost convention (except where specifically stated) 

and on the accrual and going concern basis. Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies are consistent with 

those applied in the prior year. Where appropriate, comparative figures have been amended to conform with 

the current presentation, and disclosure has been made of any material changes to comparatives. 

All amounts presented in the financial statements are expressed in Australian Dollars and have been rounded 

off to the nearest dollar. 

1C Accounting Estimates and Judgements 

In the application of Australian Accounting Standards, CCA is required to make judgements, estimates and 

assumptions about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily available from other sources. 

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experiences and various other factors 

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 

are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the 

period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

CCA has made no assumptions concerning the future that may cause a material adjustment to the carrying 

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next reporting period. 

Key Judgements 

Assumptions are utilised in the determination of CCA's employee entitlements provisions. These assumptions are 

discussed in Note 1O. Assumption and judgements are utilised in determining the value of CCA's property, plant 

and equipment including useful lives and depreciation rates. These assumptions are discussed in Note 1F. 

1D Revenue 

Revenue is recognised when CCA obtains control of the contribution or the right to receive the contributions, it 

is probable that the economic benefits comprising the contribution will flow to CCA and the amount of the 

contribution can be measured reliably. 
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CCA determines whether an enforceable agreement exists and whether the promises to transfer goods or 

services to the customer are ‘sufficiently specific’. If an enforceable agreement exists and the promises are 

‘sufficiently specific’ (to a transaction or part of a transaction), CCA applies the general AASB 15 principles to 

determine the appropriate revenue recognition. If these criteria are not met, CCA considers whether AASB 1058 

applies. 

Refer to note 1Q for accounting policy related to AASB 15 and AASB 1058. 

Interest revenue is recognised on an accrual basis as earned using the effective interest rate method. 

Grant income is recognised as revenue when CCA obtains control over the assets comprising the receipt. 

Control over granted assets is normally obtained upon their receipt (or acquittal) or upon earlier notification that 

a grant has been secured and are valued at their fair value at the date of transfer. 

Where grants recognised as revenue during the financial year were obtained on condition that they be 

expended in a particular manner or used over a particular period and those conditions were undischarged at 

balance date, the unused grant is also disclosed. Unreceived contributions over which CCA has control are 

recognised as receivables. 

CCA recognises a contractual asset for work in progress where a performance obligation is satisfied by 

transferring a promised good or service to the customer before the customer pays consideration or CCA transfers 

control of the contractual asset. 

CCA reviews contractual assets for impairment annually and when indicators of impairment are identified. 

All revenue is stated net of the amount of Goods and Services Tax (GST) 

1E Borrowings 

The borrowing capacity of CCA is limited by the rules of CCA. Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value net 

of transaction costs incurred. After initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost. 

Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in 

the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the period of the liability using the effective interest method. 

1F Plant, Equipment and Leasehold Improvements 

Plant and equipment is measured at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Leasehold 

improvements are recognised at cost and are amortised over the unexpired period of the 10-year lease period. 

Depreciation is calculated on a diminishing value basis over the useful lives of the assets, commencing from the 

time the asset is held ready for use. The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are listed 

below and are consistent with the prior year. 

Plant and Equipment:  7.5 - 60% 

Leasehold Improvements: 10% 

Depreciation rates and methods are reviewed annually, and residual values and useful lives are adjusted if 

appropriate at the end of each reporting period. Items of plant and equipment are derecognised upon disposal 

or when there are no future economic benefits to CCA. 

1G Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets with finite lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation 

and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful 

lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with 

the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with 

indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. 

1H Impairment 

At the end of each reporting period, CCA reviews the carrying values of its assets to determine whether there is 

any indication those assets have been impaired. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income under expenses. Reversals of impairment losses are recognised under income. For non- 

cash-generating assets of CCA, carrying value is presented by the depreciated value of the asset approximated 

by the written down replacement cost. 
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1I Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at-call with financial institutions and other short-

term highly liquid investments with the original maturities of two months or less. 

1J Receivables 

Receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. A provision for impairment is 

recognised when there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred. 

Debtors are required to settle their accounts within 14 days of the invoice being issued. CCA does not have any 

concerns regarding the payment of outstanding debt. 

1K Right-Of-Use Asset 

A right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost comprising the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted 

for any lease payments made before the commencement date (reduced by lease incentives received), plus 

initial direct costs incurred in obtaining the lease and an estimate of costs to be incurred in dismantling and 

removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the 

condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease. 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of the lease term and useful life of the underlying 

asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that CCA  

expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the 

underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease. 

1L Lease Liability 

The lease liability is measured at the present value of outstanding payments that are not paid at balance date, 

discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. Where this cannot be readily determined, then CCA's 

incremental borrowing rate for a similar term with similar security is used. 

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease 

liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments 

made. 

1M Payables 

Payables represent the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period for goods and services received 

by CCA during the reporting period which remain unpaid. The balance is recognised as a current liability with 

the amounts normally paid within 30 days of recognition. 

1N Taxation 

CCA is exempt from all forms of taxation except Fringe Benefits Tax, Payroll Tax, and Goods and Services Tax. 

Goods and Services Tax (GST) 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST 

incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office. In these circumstances, the GST is recognised as 

part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense. Receivables and payables in the 

statement of financial position are shown inclusive of GST. 

Cash flows are presented in the cash flow statement on a gross basis, except for the GST component of the 

investing and financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows. 

1O Employee Benefits 

Employee benefits include, where applicable, entitlements to wages and salaries, annual leave, personal leave, 

long service leave, superannuation, and any other post-employment benefits. Expenses are recognised in the 

Statement of Comprehensive Income when a decrease in future economic benefits related to a decrease in 

assets or an increase in liabilities have arisen that can measure reliably. 
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Short-Term Obligations 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, annual leave, and long service leave expected to be settled within 12 months 

of the end of the reporting period are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are 

settled. 

Long-Term Obligations 

The liability for long service leave and annual leave which is not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months 

after the end of the reporting period in which the employee renders the related services, is recognised in the 

provision of employee benefits and measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in 

respect to services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period. Expected future payments are 

discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to 

maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash flows. 

Personal Leave Benefits 

No accrual is made for personal leave as experience indicates that, on average, personal leave taken in each 

reporting period is less than the entitlement accruing in that period, and this is expected to recur in future 

reporting periods. CCA does not make payment for any untaken personal leave entitlements. 

Superannuation 

During the year CCA made the required superannuation contributions for all eligible employees to an 

appropriate complying superannuation fund as required by the Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 

1992. 

1P Allocation Between Current and Non-Current 

In determination of whether an asset or liability is current or non-current, consideration is given to the time when 

each asset or liability is expected to be settled. The asset or liability is classified as current if it is expected to be 

settled within the next 12 months, or if CCA does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of a liability 

for at least 12 months after the reporting date, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.  

1Q Adoption of New and Amended Accounting Standards 

In the current year, CCA has adopted all the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the 

Australian Accounting Standards Board that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current annual 

reporting period. The impact of the adoption of new and revised Standards are detailed below and in the 

relevant notes where applicable. 

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities 

CCA adopted AASB 15 and AASB 1058 using the modified retrospective method of transition, with the date of 

initial application of 1 July 2019. In accordance with the provisions of this transition approach, CCA recognised 

the cumulative effect of applying these new standards as an adjustment to opening accumulated surpluses at 

the date of initial application, i.e., 1 July 2019. Consequently, the comparative information presented has not 

been restated and continues to be reported under the previous standards on revenue and income. In addition, 

CCA has applied the practical expedients and elected to apply these standards retrospectively only to 

contracts and transactions that were not completed contracts at the date of initial application, i.e., as at 1 July 

2019. 

As CCA has applied the modified retrospective approach, it has applied the practical expedient described in 

AASB 15.C5(c) for all contract modifications that occurred before the application date. In doing so, CCA did 

not retrospectively restate the contract for those modifications in accordance with AASB 15.20-21. Instead, CCA 

reflected the aggregate effect of all of the modifications that occurred before the beginning of the earliest 

period presented when: 

• Identifying the satisfied and unsatisfied performance obligations 

• Determining the transaction price 

• Allocating the transaction price to the satisfied and unsatisfied performance obligation 
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AASB 15 introduces a five-step process for revenue recognition, with the core principle of the new standard 

being for entities to recognise revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers in amounts that 

reflect the consideration (that is, payment) to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those 

goods or services. 

The impact of the new standard has changed in the timing of revenue recognition, treatment of contract costs 

and contracts which contain a financing element. 

AASB 1058 supersedes all the income recognition requirements relating to CCA, previously in AASB 1004 

Contributions. The timing of income recognition under AASB 1058 depends on whether a transaction gives rise 

to a liability or other performance obligation, or a contribution by owners, related to an asset (such as cash or 

another asset) received. 

AASB 1058 applies when CCA enters into other transactions in which the consideration to acquire an asset is 

significantly less than the fair value of the asset, and where the asset is principally to enable CCA to further its 

objectives. In cases where CCA enters into other transactions, CCA recognises and measures the asset at fair 

value in accordance with the applicable Australian Accounting Standard (e.g. AASB 116 Property, Plant and 

Equipment). 

If the transaction is a transfer of a financial asset to enable CCA to acquire or construct a recognisable non- 

financial asset to be controlled by CCA (i.e. an in-substance acquisition of a non-financial asset), CCA 

recognises a liability for the excess of the fair value of the transfer over any related amounts recognised. CCA 

will recognise income as it satisfies its obligations under the transfer, similarly to income recognition relating to 

performance obligations under AASB 15 as discussed above. 

AASB 16 Leases 

AASB 16 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for 

all leases with a term of more than 12 months unless the underlying asset is of low value. A lessee is required to 

recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability 

representing its obligations to make lease payments. 

In contracts where CCA is a lessee, CCA recognises a right-of-use asset and lease liability at the commencement 

date of the lease, unless the short-term or low-value exemption is applied. Refer to Note 1L for details on 

accounting policy of lease liability. 

CCA has applied this standard from 1 July 2019 using a retrospective approach (partial) with a cumulative catch- 

up. This does not require CCA to restate comparative figures but does require the presentation of both 

qualitative and quantitative disclosures for affected items, along with a corresponding adjustment to the 

opening balance of accumulated surpluses for transitional effects of re-measurement. 

AASB 16 has resulted in most of CCA's operating leases being brought onto the statement of financial position. 

There are limited exceptions relating to short-term leases and low-value assets. 

The calculation of the lease liability has taken into account appropriate discount rates, assumptions about the 

lease term, and increases in lease payments. A corresponding right-of-use asset has been recognised, which has 

been amortised over the term of the lease. Rent expense is no longer shown. The profit and loss impact of the 

leases has been through depreciation and interest charges. In the Statement of Cash Flows lease payments has 

been shown as cash flows from financing activities instead of operating activities. 

Impact of the new definition of a lease 

CCA has made use of the practical expedient available on transition to AASB 16 not to reassess whether a 

contract is or contains a lease. Instead, contracts containing a lease under AASB 117 or Interpretation 4 at 

transition will continue to be applied to those contracts entered or modified before 1 January 2019. 

The change in the definition of a lease mainly relates to the concept of control. AASB 16 determines whether a 

contract contains a lease based on whether the customer has the right to control the use of an identified asset 

for a period of time in exchange for consideration. This contrasts with the focus on 'risks and rewards' in AASB 117 

and Interpretation 4. 
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Impact of lessee accounting 

AASB 16 changes how CCA accounts for leases previously classified as operating leases under AASB 117, which 

were off balance sheet. 

Applying AASB 16, for all leases, CCA: 

• Recognises right-of-use of assets and lease liabilities in the statement of financial position, initially measured 

at the present value of the future lease payments; 

• Recognises depreciation of right-of-use assets and interest on lease liabilities in profit or loss; 

• Separates the total amount of cash paid into a principal portion (presented within financing activities) and 

interest (presented within financing activities) in the statement of cash flows. 

Lease incentives (e.g. rent-free period) are recognised as part of the measurement of the right-of-use assets and 

lease liabilities whereas under AASB 117 they resulted into the recognition of a lease incentive, amortised as a 

reduction of rental expenses generally on a straight-line basis. 

Under AASB 16, right-of-use assets are tested for impairment in accordance with AASB 136. 

For short-term leases (lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low-value assets (such as tablet and personal 

computers, small items of office furniture and telephones), CCA has opted to recognise a lease expense on a 

straight-line basis as permitted by AASB 16. This expense is presented within 'other operating expenses' in profit or 

loss. 

Transition 

On transition to AASB 16, CCA recognised additional right-of-use assets and additional lease liabilities, 

recognising the difference in accumulated surpluses. The impact on transition is summarised below. 

 

1 July 2019 Note $ 

Right-of-use assets 12 114,500 

Lease liabilities 15 (114,500) 

Accumulated surpluses  - 

Note 2 Events after Reporting Date 

In response to COVID-19, CCA reduced staffing hours to temporarily preserve cash flows. Following 30 June 2020, 

CCA has since reinstated staffing hours to their normal levels. There have been no other events subsequent to 

balance date which would have a material effect of CCA's Financial Statements at 30 June 2020. 
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Note 3 Government Grants 

 2020 

$ 

2019 

$ 

 

Department of Agriculture, Water and Environment 

 

1,113,335 

 

645,695 

Department of Infrastructure, Innovation and Science 137,354 116,000 

Department of Infrastructure, Regional Development and Cities 3,120,000 316,452 

Department of State Growth 636,230 57,500 

DPIPWE - Biosecurity Tasmania 152,986 - 

DPIPWE - Natural and Cultural Heritage 264,621 - 

Events Tasmania - 74,046 

Tourism Tasmania - 270,504 

Total 5,424,525 1,480,197 

 

Note 4 Council Contributions 

 2020 

$ 

2019 

$ 

 

Burnie City Council 

 

161,006 

 

156,316 

Central Coast Council 173,721 168,661 

Circular Head Council 66,892 64,944 

Devonport City Council 203,361 197,438 

Kentish Council 48,713 47,294 

King Island Council 13,880 13,475 

Latrobe Council 72,623 70,508 

Waratah-Wynyard Council 113,009 109,717 

West Coast Council 42,266 41,035 

Total 895,471 869,388 

 

Note 5 Other Income 

 2020 

$ 

2019 

$ 

 

Project Contributions 

 

395,111 

 

421,564 

Fees and Charges 98,744 125,408 

Sponsorship 2,250 5,364 

Other Contributions 56,622 59,534 

Total 552,727 611,870 

  



 

CRADLE COAST AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2020 51 

 

Note 6 Employee Benefits 

  

 2020 

$ 

2019 

$ 

 
Wages and Salaries 

 
1,354,937 

 
1,477,997 

Workers Compensation 7,888 7,975 

Annual and Long Service Leave 40,359 (154,670) 

Superannuation 124,052 123,543 

Payroll Tax (317) 15,432 

Fringe Benefits Tax 1,823 1,440 

Redundancy 8,279 28,974 

Transfer to Contract Asset (192,287) - 

Total 1,344,733 1,500,691 

 
Capitalised Employee Benefits transferred to Contract Asset at year-end is included in Note 12. 

Note 7 Project Materials and Services 

  

 2020 

$ 

2019 

$ 

 
Advertising and Marketing 

 
31,026 

 
44,405 

Consultants and Contract Payments 1,503,902 657,072 

Project Contributions (Including Devolved Grants) 117,777 138,899 

Project Materials, Workshops and Events 45,839 19,489 

References and Subscriptions 57,800 64,250 

Transfer/Refund of Project Funding 23,616 481,193 

Transfer to Contract Asset (1,385,019) - 

Total 394,941 1,405,308 

No transfers/refunds of project reserves recorded as project materials/services payable during the year were 

payable at year-end. 

Capitalised Project Materials and Services transferred to Contract Asset at year-end is included in Note 12. 

Note 8 Depreciation and Amortisation 

2020 

$ 

2019 

$ 

 

Plant and Equipment 

 

36,175 

 

21,413 

Leasehold Improvements 52,404 52,404 

Right-of-Use Assets 42,258 - 

Total 130,837 73,817 
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Note 9 Other Operating Expenses 

  

 2020 2019 

 $ $ 

 
Audit Fees - Projects 

 
990 

 
1,300 

Bank Charges 625 911 

Consultancy Fees 19,690 20,072 

Directors' Remuneration 63,207 69,785 

External Auditors' Remuneration (Tasmanian Audit Office) 10,859 14,074 

Insurance 13,374 12,890 

IT Expenses 61,942 56,435 

Legal Advice 4,072 8,629 

Meeting and Seminar Expenses 60,002 34,068 

Motor Vehicle Expenses 25,744 33,909 

Office Costs 33,888 30,936 

Printing and Stationary 8,647 7,863 

Recruitment and Relocation Expenses 9,559 15,479 

Rent Outgoings 17,579 65,172 

Sundry Expenses 4,522 13,391 

Telephone 14,255 18,784 

Travel and Accommodation 29,299 29,606 

Transfer to Contract Asset (3,385) - 

Total 374,869 433,303 

 

Capitalised Other Operating Expenses transferred to Contract Asset at year-end is included in Note 12. 

Note 10 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

  

 2020 2019 

 $ $ 

 
Cash on Hand 

 
112 

 
400 

Cash at Bank 3,290,848 1,617,409 

Total 3,290,960 1,617,809 

Some of CCA’s cash and cash equivalents are subject to external funding restrictions or are held for specific 

business activities, this limits the amounts available for future discretionary use. These funds are held as residual 

project funds relating to relevant commitments, see Note 18 for details of areas these funds are committed. 

Note 11 Receivables 

 

 Note 2020 

$ 

2019 

$ 

 
Debtors 

 
 

 
1,687,568 

 
280,945 

Accrued Interest  1,555 2,007 

Accrued Revenue 105,648 - 

Net GST Receivable 4,522 5,906 

Total     21 1,799,293 288,858 
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Note 12 Property, Plant and Equipment 

 2020 2019 

 $ $ 

 
Plant and Equipment (at cost) 

 
520,005 

 
613,279 

Less Accumulated Depreciation (403,140) (468,568) 

Plant and Equipment at Written Down Value 116,866 144,711 

 
Leasehold Improvements (at cost) 

 
524,021 

 
524,021 

Less Accumulated Amortisation (375,562) (323,158) 

Leasehold Improvements at Written Down Value 148,459 200,863 

 
Right-of-Use Assets 

 
148,547 

 
- 

Less Accumulated Amortisation (42,258) - 

Right-of-Use Assets at Written Down Value 106,289 - 

 
Contract Asset 

 
 

 

Coastal Pathway (at cost) 1,580,691 - 

Total Works in Progress 1,580,691 - 

 
Movements in Carrying Amounts 

  

 

Plant and Equipment 
  

Balance as at Beginning of Year 144,711 158,858 

Additions 14,187 8,379 

Disposals (5,857) (1,113) 

Depreciation Expense (36,175) (21,413) 

Balance as at End of Year 116,866 144,711 

 
Leasehold Improvements 

  

Balance at Beginning of Year 200,863 253,267 

Depreciation Expense (52,404) (52,404) 

Balance at End of Year 148,459 200,863 

 
Right-of-Use Assets 

  

Balance as at Beginning of Year 114,500 - 

Additions 34,047 - 

Disposals - - 

Depreciation Expense (42,258) - 

Balance as at End of Year 106,289 - 
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Note 13 Intangible Assets 

  

2020 2019 

$ $ 

Intangible Assets  208,125 124,875 

Less Accumulated Amortisation    

Intangible Assets at Written Down Value  208,125 124,875 

 
 

Movements in Carrying Amounts 

   

 
Intangible Assets 

   

Balance as at Beginning of Year  124,875 - 

Additions  83,250 124,875 

Disposals  - - 

Amortisation Expense  - - 

Balance as at End of Year  208,125 124,875 

Note 14 Payables 

   

  

Note 
2020 

$ 

2019 

$ 

 

Creditors 

  

816,943 

 

253,929 

Other Payables  47,117 522,994 

Total             22 864,060 776,923 

 

Note 15 Lease Liabilities 

 2020 

$ 

2019 

$ 

 
Lease liabilities 

 
106,289 

 
- 

 106,289 - 

 
Current 

 
50,736 

 
- 

Non-Current 55,553 - 
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Reconciliation of operating lease commitments under AASB 117 and lease liabilities under AASB 16 

As a lessee, the weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised in the 

statement of financial position on the date of the initial application was 4.80%. The difference between the 

operating lease commitments disclosed previously by applying AASB 117 and the value of the lease liabilities 

recognised under AASB 16 on 1 July 2019 is explained as follows: 

 

Operating lease commitments as at 30 June 2019 152,483 

Discounted using CCA's weighted average incremental borrowing rate of 4.80% 145,499 

Finance lease liabilities recognised as at 30 June 2019  

• Recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets 30,999 

• Recognition exemption for leases with less than 12 months of lease term at 

transition 

- 

• Extension options reasonably certain to be exercised - 

• Adjustments relating to changes in the index or rate - 

Lease liability recognised as at 1 July 2019 114,500 

 

Lease liabilities are secured by the related underlying assets. Future minimum lease payments will be as 

follows: 

As at 30 June 2020  

 

Not Later than One Year 

 

50,736 

 

- 

Later than One and Not Later than Five Years  55,553 - 

Later Than Five Years - - 

 106,289 - 

Note 16 Provisions 

2020 

$ 

2019 

$ 

Current 
  

Annual Leave 83,498 61,066 

Long Service leave 5,841 4,379 

On Costs – Superannuation 8,487 5,321 

On Costs – Other 7,826 4,907 

Total 105,651 66,245 

 
Non-Current 

  

Long Service Leave 15,275 14,322 

On Costs - Superannuation - - 

Total 15,275 14,322 
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Note 17 Borrowings 

  

 2020 

$ 

2019 

$ 

Current 
  

Borrowing - Secured 

Non-Current 

61,844 58,888 

Borrowing - Secured 133,614 195,458 

Total 195,458 254,346 

 

Borrowings Secured by a Deed of Charge Over CCA's Assets 
  

Not Later than One Year 61,844 58,888 

Later than One and Not Later than Five Years 133,614 195,458 

Later Than Five Years - - 

Total 195,458 254,346 

 

Note 18 Reserves 

 Opening 

Balance  

 

Funding 

Received 

Expended Closing 

Balance 

 
2020 

 
$ 

 
$ 

 
$ 

 
$ 

    - 

Regional NRM - Regional Land Partnerships 2,837 1,114,978 (743,827) 373,988 

Regional NRM - Standalone & State (1,047) 241,660 (215,766) 24,846 

Regional Economic Development 296,069 4,312,669 (1,935,999) 2,672,739 

Total 297,859 5,669,307 (2,895,593) 3,071,573 

 
2019 

 
$ 

 
$ 

 
$ 

 
$ 

National Landcare Programme 48,004 29 (48,033) - 

Regional NRM - Regional Land Partnerships - 74,046 (71,209) 2,837 

Regional NRM - Standalone & State 580,368 699,848 (1,021,160) 259,056 

Regional Tourism 52,378 601,386 (579,017) 74,747 

Regional Economic Development 558,989 869,317 (1,118,812) 309,494 

Total 1,239,739 2,244,626 (2,838,231) 646,134 

 

Regional Economic Development funding has been received for committed expenditure for the Coastal 

Pathway project contracted during the 2019/20 financial year, these contract commitments are disclosed in 

Note 24. CCA has recognised a Contract Asset that is expected to be transferred to Member Councils at the 

end of the project. 
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Note 19 Cash Flow Information 

2020 

$ 

2019 

$ 

 
Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to surplus / (deficit) 

  

Result from continuing operations 4,625,440 (436,690) 

Depreciation/amortisation 130,837 73,817 

(Profit)/loss on disposal of property, plant, and equipment 5,807 1,111 

Change in assets and liabilities: 

Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables (1,383,176) (211,648) 

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 157,982 543,180 

Increase/(decrease) in provisions 40,359 (154,670) 

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 3,577,249 (184,899) 

Note 20 Changes in Equity 

Reconciliation of changes in equity due to the adoption of new accounting standards 

Closing Balance as at 30 June 2019  1,272,399 

Adoption of AASB 1058 - 

Adoption of AASB 15 (340,834) 

Adoption of AASB 16 - 

Restated Balance as at 1 July 2019 931,565 

Note 21 Financial Instruments 

a) Accounting Policies and Processes 
 

CCA has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework. Risk 

management policies are established to identify and analyse risks faced by CCA, to set appropriate risk 

limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are 

reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and business activities. 

 

CCA has an Audit and Risk Committee, with the purpose being to report to the Board and provide 

appropriate advice and recommendations to assist the Board to discharge its corporate governance 

responsibilities. It also provides a liaison between CCA and the external auditor. 

 

The Committee is responsible for reviewing and reporting to the Board on the following matters; 

• The effectiveness of internal controls established by management to safeguard the operations, 

including fraud prevention, of CCA. 

• Whether accounting procedures and policies comply with statutory requirements including the Local 

Government Act 1993 (as amended) and relevant Accounting Standards. 

• The accuracy, reliability, and timeliness of financial information, including monthly reports, quarterly 

financials and annual financial statements, provided to the Board and Representatives. 
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b) Categories of Financial Assets  

  2020 2019 

  $ $ 

 Financial assets   

 Cash and cash equivalents 3,290,960 1,617,809 

 Receivables 1,799,293 288,858 

 Total financial assets 5,090,252 1,906,667 

 Financial liabilities   

 Payables (864,060) (776,923) 

 Borrowings (195,458) (254,346) 

 Lease liability (106,289) - 

 Other liabilities (411,680) - 

 Total financial liabilities (1,577,488) (1,031,269) 

 Net financial assets/liabilities 3,512,765 875,398 

 

CCA received grant revenue in advance from DPIPWE – Biosecurity Tasmania, DPIPWE – Natural and 

Cultural Heritage and the Department of State Growth. Grants with specific performance obligations yet 

to be satisfied at 30 June 2020 under an enforceable contract, or where the funding agreement includes 

a “Termination of Convenience” clause giving the Grantor the right to terminate the Deed by notice in 

writing, whereby CCA  must repay the Grantor on demand, gives rise to a financial liability. These are 

disclosed above as “Other Liabilities”. 

 

c) Fair Value 
The aggregate net fair value of financial assets and liabilities, both recognised and unrecognised, at 

balance date are as follows: 

 Total carrying amount as per 

Statement of Financial Position 

Aggregate net fair value 

 2020 

$ 

2019 

$ 

2020 

$ 

2019 

$ 

Financial assets     

Cash and cash equivalents 3,290,960 1,617,809 3,290,960 1,617,809 

Receivables 1,799,293 288,858 1,799,293 288,858 

Total financial assets 5,090,252 1,906,667 5,090,252 1,906,667 

Financial liabilities     

Payables (864,943) (776,923) (864,943) (776,923) 

Borrowings (195,458) (254,346) (209,248) (272,328) 

Lease liability (106,289) - (106,289) - 

Other liabilities (411,680) - (411,680) - 

Total financial liabilities (1,577,488) (1,031,269) (1,591,277) (1,049,251) 

 

d) Credit Risk 

 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance date relating to each class of recognised financial 

asset is represented by the carrying amount of those assets and indicated in the Statement of Financial 

Position. 
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e) Risk and Mitigation 

Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because 

of changes in market prices. CCA’s exposures to market risks are primarily through interest rate risk, with 

only insignificant exposure to other prices risks and no exposure to foreign currency risk. Components of 

market risk to which we are exposed are discussed below. 

Interest Rate Risk 

CCA has no borrowings subject to interest rate risk at the balance date but does hold investments which 

are subject to interest rate fluctuation. CCA does not consider that the risk has an adverse effect on the 

performance of the business because any interest received is additional income to the funds received 

under funding arrangements. Only when the interest is received does it become available to invest 

further in the projects to which the grant deed and funding agreements apply. 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligations under a financial instrument 

and cause CCA to make a financial loss. CCA has exposure to credit risk on some financial assets 

included in the Statement of Financial Position. 

 

Credit risk arises from CCA’s financial assets, which comprise cash and cash equivalents, and trade and 

other receivables. The majority of debtors are Member Councils and government entities where 

instalments are received in accordance with payment schedules contained in the grant deeds and 

funding agreements. The grant deeds and funding agreements also contain clauses that should funds 

be required to be returned to the respective government entity, the amount to be returned is net of 

legally committed contractual arrangements. To minimise the credit risk, each grant deed or funding 

agreement is assessed before executing to ensure CCA has adequate resources to perform the 

obligations under any deeds or agreements. 

 2020 Gross 

$ 

2020 Impairment 

$ 

2019 Gross 

$ 

2019 Impairment 

$ 

Aged Debtors Analysis 

Current (not yet due) 

 
1,687,568 

 
- 

 
40,736 

 
- 

Past due by up to 30 days 

Past due from 31 to 60 days 

 
- 

- 

- 

240,209 

- 

- 

- 

Past due more than 60 days - - - - 

Total Receivables 1,687,568 - 280,945 - 

Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk CCA will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. CCA’s 

approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity 

to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring 

unacceptable losses or risking damage to CCA’s reputation. 

 

Typically, CCA ensures it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses for a 

period of 60 days, including the servicing of financial obligations. This excludes the potential impact of 

extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters. 

 

The following table lists the contractual maturities for Financial Liabilities. Contractual cash flows are 

based on the undiscounted total payment, including both principal and interest, on the earliest possible 

date on which CCA may be required to pay. 

  



 

CRADLE COAST AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2020 60 

 

Liquidity Risk Cont. 

 2020 

$ 

2019 

$ 

Within one year 923,682 835,811 

1 to 5 years 600,848 195,458 

5 to 10 years - - 

Total Financial Liabilities 1,530,371 1,031,269 

 

f) Sensitivity disclosure analysis 

Considering past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and management’s 

knowledge and experience of the financial markets, CCA believes a parallel shift +1% and -1% in market 

interest rates (AUD) from year-end rates are ‘reasonably possible’ over the next 12 months. 

 

The table below discloses the impact on net operating result and equity if the above movements were 

to occur. 

 
-1% 1% 

2020 

Change in surplus 

 
(32,909) 

 
32,909 

Change in equity (32,909) 32,909 

2019   

Change in surplus (16,177) 16,177 

Change of equity (16,177) 16,177 

Note 22 Material Budget Variations 

CCA’s 2019/20 budget was adopted by the Board and endorsed by the Representatives in May 2019. The 

original projections have been affected by several factors, these include State and Australian Government 

decisions around new grant programs, changing economic activity, and decisions made by CCA. Material 

variations of more than +10% and -10% are explained below. 

Income 

Income received was up $4.7m on budget due mainly to the following: 

• Government grants were up $4.26m on budget primarily due to Coastal Pathway construction and NRM 

RLP funding received not included in original budget estimates. 

• Other income received was up $517k on budget due to Council Contributions received for Coastal 

Pathway construction not included in budget estimates. 

• Interest received was up $4k on budget due to cash levels held during the financial year. 

Expenses 

Expenses were up $46k on budget due mainly to the following: 

• Employee benefits were $359k above budget due to resourcing for NRM and other new projects not 

being included in original budget estimates. 

• Project expenses were $321k under budget due to the timing and number of projects delivered, along 

with project resourcing being reported as 'employee benefits'. 

• Other operating expenses were $62k below budget, however, comparable overall when adjusted for 

right-of-use assets recognised as depreciation. 

• Depreciation (plant and equipment) was $15k above budget due to revised useful lives, new acquisitions 

(not budgeted) and obsolete assets being written down. Depreciation now also includes right-of-use 

assets (rent expense). 
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Note 23 Related Party Transactions 

a) Responsible Persons 

 Persons holding the position of a responsible person at any time during the year were: 

 Directors      Mr Andrew Wardlaw (ceased June 2020) 

        Ms Annette Rockliff 

        Ms Kathy Schaefer PSM 

        Mr Malcolm Wells 

        Mr Peter Voller PSM 

        Mr Phil Vickers 

        Mr Shane Crawford (commenced June 2020) 

        Ms Sheree Vertigan AM (commenced July 2019) 

        The. Hon. Sid Sidebottom (Chair) 

 Chief Executive Officer    Mr Daryl Connelly 

 Director Strategic Services    Ms Claire Smith 

 Regional NRM Manager    Mr Spencer Gibbs  

   

CCA conducts business with all Directors on the same terms and conditions as those entered into with 

other individuals and organisations. During the Financial Year, there were no financial transactions with 

Directors other than the Remuneration disclosed below. 

Key Management Personnel (KMP) are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, 

directing and controlling the entity. Representatives are elected to represent each council and have 

been identified as KMP. However, do not receive remuneration and therefore, are not included in the 

KMP remuneration disclosure below. 

Termination benefits for KMP include payments during the year representing the balance of accrued 

annual and long service leave entitlements payable. 

Transactions with Related Parties disclosed include transactions with Related Parties controlled or jointly 

controlled by KMP. Details of transactions that occurred, including the nature of the terms and conditions 

relating to the transaction and the aggregate amount of each type of transaction are provided below. 

 

b) Key Management Personnel Remuneration 

 Remunerated KMP include Directors, the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Management  

  2020 

$ 

2019 

$ 

 Short-term employee benefits 476,703 492,235 

 Post-employment benefits 42,502 51,347 

 Other long-term employment benefits 10,165 (9,090) 

 Termination benefits - 135,838 

 Total 529,370 670,330 

Short-term employee benefits disclosed above include employment agreement allowances paid by 

CCA to 'Change Mob' a jointly controlled entity, identified as a related party through a declaration made 

by Daryl Connelly. 
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c) Transactions with Related Parties 

 
Reference 

2020 

$ 

2019 

$ 

Contributions received from related entities i. 895,471 869,388 

Fees and charges received from entities controlled 

by KMP 
- - 

Purchase of materials and services from entities 

controlled by KMP 

- - 

Purchase of materials and services from related 
ii.

 199,460 731,251 

Materials and services purchased by related entities iii. 6,103 6,335 

Other contributions from related entities iv. 444,049 432,654 

Contributions to related entities v. - 495,331 

 

i. Contributions received from related parties was in accordance with CCA’s approved annual 

budget adopted by the Representatives in May 2019. Details of these contributions are disclosed in 

Note 3 Council Contributions.  

ii. CCA purchased materials and services from related entities in accordance with approved service 

agreements and contracts. All purchases were at arm’s length and were in the normal course of 

CCA’s operations. The total disclosure includes: 

• Rental of the office building, under a 10-year lease agreement with Burnie City Council (BCC). 

• IT services, provided in accordance with a one-year service level agreement with TasCom, an 

entity controlled by BCC. 

• Contract payments made under an agreement with Cultivate Productions identified as a related 

entity through a declaration made by Annette Rockliff. 

iii. Related entities purchased materials and services from CCA in accordance with approved 

arrangements. The total disclosure includes: 

• Services provided by related parties under shared services arrangements. 

• Charges for various workshops attended by local government staff. 

iv. CCA received contributions from related entities. The total disclosure includes the following 

transactions of material significance: 

• Contributions towards Coastal Pathway construction from Central Coast, Devonport City and 

Latrobe Councils. 

• Contributions towards Regional Profile ID subscription from Burnie City, Circular Head and 

Waratah-Wynyard Councils. 

No expenses have been recognised in the current year or prior year for bad or doubtful debts in 

respect of amounts owed by related parties. 

No interests have been notified to the Chief Executive Officer, in respect of anybody or organisation 

with which CCA has major financial dealings. Other than related entities, being Member Councils 

identified and disclosed above. 

d) Outstanding balances, including commitments to/from related parties 

 As at 30 June 2020, CCA owed the following balances to related parties: 

• Burnie City Council $7,274 

• Tascom $33 

As at 30 June 2020, the following balances were receivable from related parties: 

• Central Coast Council $2,525 

CCA has no commitments in existence as reporting date that have been made, guaranteed, or 

secured by CCA to a related entity. 

e) Transactions with related parties that have not been disclosed 

All transactions with related parties have been disclosed, either in aggregate or detail where 

determined to be of material significance. 
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Note 24 Commitments 

CCA had Coastal Pathway construction commitments for expenditure totalling $2.8m as at 30 June 2020. CCA 

had no commitments for expenditure as at 30 June 2019. 
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Statement by Directors 

The accompanying general purpose financial statements of Cradle Coast Authority for the year ended 30 June 

2020: 

• Presents fairly the financial position of CCA, financial performance and cash flows. 

• Complies with Australian Accounting Standards, mandatory professional reporting requirements and 

other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the Local 

Government Act 1993 (Tasmania). 

• Been prepared based on properly maintained financial records. 

 

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board and is signed for on and behalf of the Board 

by: 

 

 

 

The Hon. Sid Sidebottom 

Chair 

21 October 2020 

 

 

 

Sheree Vertigan AM 

Director 

21 October 2020 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

For the year ended 30 June 2020 

The Directors present their report on CCA for the 

financial year ended 30 June 2020. The Directors 

in office during the year were as follows: 

The Hon. Sid Sidebottom (Chair) 

Mr Andrew Wardlaw (ceased June 2020) 

Mayor Annette Rockliff 

Mr Kathy Schaefer AM 

Mr Malcolm Wells PSM 

Mr Peter Voller PSM 

Mayor Phil Vickers 

Mr Shane Crawford (commenced June 2020) 

Ms Sheree Vertigan AM (commenced July 2019) 

Unless otherwise stated the Directors have been 

in office since the start of the financial year to the 

date of this report. 

Operating Result 

CCA reported an operating surplus $4,625,400 for 

the financial year; 2019 (deficit) ($436,690). 

Significant changes in the state of affairs 

The appointment of Sheree Vertigan AM in July 

2019, marked the establishment of the Regional 

Economic Development Steering Group as a 

Committee of CCA.  July 2019 also saw CCA 

confirmed as the Australian Government’s 

preferred service provider under the National 

Landcare Program to deliver a suite of Regional 

Land Partnerships projects for the period of 2018 

through to 2023. Cessation of standalone 

branding reflected the complete integration of 

the NRM business function within CCA. 

Review of operations 

In December 2019, following a 12-month period of 

successful organisational reform, the Board 

announced that CEO, Daryl Connelly’s 

employment agreement would be extended. Mr 

Connelly signed a new five-year employment 

agreement effective July 2020. Some operational 

highlights include: 

• Implementing the Regional Futures Plan; 

• Establishing our NRM projects funded by 

the Australian Government; 

• Developing a Shared Services Strategy, 

endorsed by owner Representatives; 

• Commencing the construction of the 

Coastal Pathway; and 

• 26 episodes of Award-Winning Tasmania 

were delivered to Channel Nine and 

commenced airing during 2020. 

Meetings of Directors 

There were four meetings of Directors, plus 16 

Committee meetings held during the year. The 

attendance by each Director during the year was 

as follows: 

Director 

Number of 

eligible to attend 

Number 

attended 

A. Wardlaw 6 6 

A. Rockliff 4 4 

K. Schaefer 4 4 

M. Wells 8 8 

P. Voller 10 10 

P. Vickers 4 3 

S. Crawford 2 2 

S. Sidebottom 4 4 

S. Vertigan 10 8 

 

CCA has not, during or since the financial year, in 

respect of any person who is or has been an 

officer or auditor of CCA or a related body 

corporate: 

• Indemnified or made any relevant 

agreement for indemnifying against a liability 

incurred as an officer, including costs and 

expenses in successfully defending legal 

proceeding; or 

• Paid or agreed to pay a premium with 

respect to a contract insuring against liability 

incurred as an officer for the costs or expenses 

to defend legal proceedings. 

CCA has paid premiums to insure all the Directors 

against liabilities for costs and expenses incurred 

by them in defending any legal proceedings 

arising out of their conduct while acting in the 

capacity of a Director of CCA, other than 

conduct involving a wilful breach of duty relating 

to CCA. 
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